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1. Name

historic Elberton Commercial Historic District

and/or common Elberton Commercial Historic District

2. Location Fuyble =>4 Gl Clled, Olow, o

r

street & number See Continuation Sheet, N/A not for publication
city, town Elberton N/Nicinity of congressional district 10th-Douglas Barnard,
state  Georgia code 013 county Elbert code 105
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
_X_district ___ public _X_occupied _.__ agriculture — .. museum
____building(s) . private —_ unoccupied _xX_ commercial X park
— structure X both —— work in progress — educational ___ private residence
___site Public Acquisition - Accessible — entertainment — religious
— object N/A In process — vyes: restricted X _ government - . scientific

— being considered X yes: unrestricted industrial —x_ transportation

Cie s .

omilitary” 720 T BT Giner:

etk w2 b

——no

4. Owner of Property

name Multiple Ownership (fewer than fifty property owners)

street & number

city, town —__vicinity of - state

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry ot deeds, etc. Superior Court

street & number Elbert County Courthouse

city, town Elberton ‘ state Georgia

6. Representation in Existing Surveys

Historic Structures Field Survey: ’
title Elbert County, Georgia has this property been determined elegible? ___yes X__ no

date 1975 —_ federal X __state ___ county ____local

depository for survey records Historic Preservation Section, Georgia Dept. of Natural Resources

city, town Atlanta See Continuation_Sheet state  Georgia




7. Description

Condition Check one Check one

— excellent —_ deteriorated ____ unaltered _X_original site
—X good —_ruins X_ altered —__moved date
—fair —_ unexposed

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

Description

The Elberton Commercial Historic District encompasses the contiguous historic
commercial downtown of Elberton, It is located on a rise of ground at the center
of Elberton's circular city limits. Prineipal city streets intersect at right an-
gles in this area, creating a tight gridiron pattern of several blocks arranged
around a central rectangular "square,'" The blocks are generally subdivided into
long, narrow lots fronting onto the main streets and backing up to service alleys.
Buildings on these lots are for the most part late-nineteenth and early-twentieth-
century two-story brick commercial structures. They are densely grouped within
the district and share both party walls and a common setback from the sidewalks.
Styles of architecture represented in the distrlct include the Romanesque, Renais-
sance, and Neeclassical; numerous examples of Victorian Eclectic design appear as
well, Brick, the principal building material, is used structurally and decora-
tively in foundations, piers, load-bearing walls, pilasters, spandrel and parapet
panels, segmental arches, string courses, and corbelled cornices. It is comple-
mented by cast-iron columns in storefronts, stone foundations, and stone, terra-
cotta, and pressed-metal ornamentatien, Exceptions to these general rules include
the free-standing Renaissance Revival Elbert County Courthouse at the eastern-most
corner of the district, the Tudor Revival Elbert Hotel at the corner of South 0li-
ver Street and Public Square South, and several Art Deco facades with black car-
rara glass aleng Public Square South, Non-historic properties that do not contri-
bute to the histeric character and appearance of the district are limited to
remodeled storefronts throughout the district, remodeled facades and a pre-~
fabricated metal structure on South McIntosh Street, and a one-story contemporary
building on Oliver Street; a few other buildings have storefronts modernized with
aluminum, plate glass, and pent roofs. Landscaping in the district is confined to
the central square, known as Sutton Square, which features expanses of lawn, trees,
flower gardens, monuments, a fountain, benches, and walks, and to the courthouse
grounds with their trees and lawn. Several sidewalks in the district are paved
with early-twentieth-century hexagonal blocks. Streets, originally paved with
brick, have been resurfaced with asphalt.

Boundary

The boundary of the Elberton Commercial Historic District is described by a
heavy black line on the attached map. To the west, the boundary follows a service
alley to the rear (west) of properties fronting on the west side of North and
South Oliver streets; to the east, a service alley to the rear (east) of proper-
ties fronting on the east side of North and South McIntosh streets; to the south,
the north edge of the right-of-way along Church Street and the service alley to
the rear (south) of properties fronting on the south side of Public Square South
between South Oliver and South MeIntosh streets; and to the north, the south edge
of the right-of-way along College Avenue/Elbert Street. This boundary circum-
scribes the contiguous historic commercial downtown of Elberton. To the north is
College Avenue/Elbert Street, a modern five-lane highway; to the west are a park-
ing lot, modern commercial structures, and houses; and to the south and east are
modern commercial buildings, parking lots, and vacant lots.
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Photographs

The Historic Preservation Section has determined that the photographs
taken in July, 1980 still provide an accurate view of the district. No
significant changes have been made since that date.



8. Significance

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

___prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric x _ community planning ____ landscape architecture ___ religion

—1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic ——__conservation . law —___science

—_1500-1599 ____ agriculture —____economics _—_ literature —__ sculpture

—-_1600-1699 X _ architecture — education ____ military —social/

—x 1700-1799 _-__ art —___engineering —__ music humanitarian

—x 1800-1899 X commerce - exploration/settlement ____ philosophy — theater

—X 1900- ____ communications — industry —_ politics/government __ transportation
—_invention —__ other (specify)

Specific dates 1 tc 18th ~ early 20rpBuilder/Architect

multinle
At

Statement of Signiﬁ%gﬂgér(yn one paragraph)

The Elberton Commercial Historic District is historically significant in terms
of architecture, community planning and develepment, and commerce, It meets Natienal
Register criteria A and C, -

. Architecture

The district is architecturally significant for its fine collection of late-
nineteenth~ and early-twentieth~century commercial buildings that represent the
prevailing design and constructien principles and practices of cemmercial architee-
ture at the time, especially as found in small northeast Georgia cities, Important
architectural styles including Romanesque, Renaissance, Neoclassical, and Victorian
Eclectic are well represented, Period details including piers, pilasters, columns,
spandrel and parapet panels, segmental arches, string courses, and cerbelled and
modillioned cornices are widely apparent, The use of brick, both structurally and
decoratively, in conjunction with cast iron, stone, terracotta, and pressed metal,
is characteristic of turn-of~the-century commercial building. This architectural
repertoire is a fine example of what could be accomplished by architects and cen-
tractors working with a range of building materials, designs, and techniques during
the late-nineteenth and early-twentieth centuries, and it represents the way in
which high-style architecture was interpreted in small northeast Geergia cities.

The district is also significant architecturally because of its extreme con-
centration of historic commercial buildings arranged in a rectilinear pattern which
creates a distinctly downtown enviromment in this part of Elberton. This effect is
enhanced by the relatively uniform scale and massing of the buildings, with princi-
pal structures highlighted through their size, location, or design, the consistent
use of materials, compatible ornamentation, and the regular siting of the buildings
along the gridiron street pattern and around the central square. Few intrusions or
vacant lots mar the historic character and appearance of the district.

Community Planning and Development

The district is significant in terms of community planning and development be-
cause 1t represents the downtown commercial center of a historic county seat that
was planned and developed in ways that are characteristic of such cities in north-
east Georgla, Elberton was founded in the late-eighteenth century, designated
county seat in 1803, and officially platted by 1808; its downtown gridiron street
plan was located on high ground at the center of circular city limits. This early-
nineteenth~century framework then accommodated intensive late-nineteenth- and early-
twentieth-century commercial development fostered by the arrival of the railroad in

[continued]
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9. Major Bibliographical References Mﬂ' M ﬂ‘]r VERE: |
See Continuatien Sheet. ;
10. Geographical Data
Acreage of nominated property _9 acres (est,)
Quadrangle name Elberton East, Ga. Quadrangle scale __1:24,000
UMT References
B .
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Verbal boundary description and justification
The boundary is described by a heayy black line on the attached property/sketch map
and is.justified in Section 7.
List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries
state N/A code county code
state ) v code county .. code
11. Form Prepared By
name/titie Richard Cloues, Architectural Historian
Historic Preservation Sectdion,
organization Georgia Dept. of Natural Resources date QOctober 15, 1980 /Apn'l 19 1982
street & number 270 Washington Street, S.W. telephone (404) ,656—2840
city or town Atlanta state Georgia 7
12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certlflcatlon
The evaluated sngnificance of this property within the state is:
— national — state X local
As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89—
665), | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service.
State Historic Preservation Officer signature ; 7/ /. 3/?3 2————
Elizabe
titte State Historic Preservation Officer date /2 SO F
GPO 938 835 Il
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1878, the emergence of the granite industry in the late-nineteenth century, and
the growth of the supporting community. The resulting downtown area embodied such
characteristic features as a central square and gridded streets lined with brick
buildings. The district is also significant because its growth and development
reflected a shift in modes of transportation from the river and such riverside
communities as Petersburg to the railroad and such trackside communities as Elber-
ton.

Commercial Significance

The district is significant in terms of the history of commerce because of
its layout and its role as the principal commercial center in Elbert County. The
district has a gridded street plan that has been identified as an important charac-
teristic of small Georgia cities founded and developed for commercial as well as
civic reasons. The district served as the center for day-to-~day commercial activ-
ity in the city and the county; these commercial activities included wholesaling
and retailing, banking, professional services, hotel accommodations, and entertain-
ment. The district also housed offices related to important local businesses and
industries, including the late-nineteenth-century granite industry for which Elber-
ton -- the "Granite City" -- is widely known in the United States.
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Alpha Rho Chapter of Beta Sigma Phi International. An Architectural,
Historical, and Civic View of Elbert County. Elberton, Ga., 1976.

Coulter, E. Merton. O01d Petersburg and the Broad River Valley of Georgia. Athens,
Ga., 1965.

Elberton Star. "Elberton, 'The Granite City' of Georgia.'" Elberton, Ga., 1913.
Pamphlet in possession of Mrs. Herbert Wilcox.

Georgia Magazine, Elbert County issue, VIII, 5 (February-March, 1965).

McIntosh, John H. The Official History of Elbert County. Elberton, Ga., 1940.

Sears, Joan N. The First 100 Years of Town Planning in Georgia. Atlanta, 1979.

Wilcox, Herbert S. Georgia Scribe. Atlanta, 1974.

Wilcox, Mrs, Herbert S. Interview, August, 1979.

Wilcox, Mrs. Herbert S. File of newspaper articles, mostly published in the El-
berton Star.

Haltermann, Bryan M. Draft National Register Nomination, "Elberton Historic District."
September 28, 1979. Prepared under contract with the Elbert County Historical
Society.
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(2) Location

The Elberton Commercial Historic District is centered on the downtown Public
Square and includes properties on either side of North and South Oliver streets
between College Avenue/Elbert Street and Church Street, North and South McIntosh
streets between Elbert Street and Church Street, James Street between Elbert Street
and Public Square North, and Public Square North and South.

(6) Representation

The Elbert County Courthouse was listed in the National Register of Historic
Places on September 18, 1980, as part of the "County Courthouses in Georgia" the-
matic group nomination.
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